
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Thursday 10 June 2021 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Friday 18 June 2021, 1.30 pm 
 

Wigton Market Hall, Church Street, CA7 9AA 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Michael Heaslip (Chair) Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes (Co-

Chair) 
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Markus Campbell-Savours 
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Patrick Gorrill 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Iain Greaney 
Councillor Hilary Harrington Councillor Daniel Horsley 
Councillor Paul Scott Councillor Stephen Stoddart 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Ian Hinde on 01900 702544. 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

 To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 23 April 2021 
  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 
 
 

  



4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm on a working day, allowing two clear 
working days before the day of the meeting. 

  

5. Public Participation   
 

 To hear representations from members of the public on items which appear on 
the agenda – submitted in writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 
working days before the meeting. 

  

6. Quarter 4 Performance Report 2020/21  (Pages 7 - 32) 
 

7. Report from Outside Body Representatives  (Pages 33 - 42) 
 

 To review the report and feedback from Outside Body and Joint Committee 
appointees 

  

8. Forward Plan  (Pages 43 - 48) 
 

9. Work Programme 2021/22  (Pages 49 - 54) 
 

 To consider and select topics for the work programme for the year 
  

 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Friday 16 July 2021, 1.30 pm 

Council Chamber, Allerdale House 
 
 



At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on 
Friday 23 April 2021 at 1.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Michael Heaslip (Chair) Councillor Iain Greaney (Co-Chair) 
Councillor John Crouch Councillor Allan Daniels 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Daniel Horsley 
Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes Councillor Paul Scott 
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Tony Annison, Councillor Carmel 
Bell, Councillor Alan Hedworth and Councillor Adrian Kirkbride 
 
Staff Present 
 
A FitzGerald, N Hardy, I Hinde, J Irving and L Jardine 
 
Also Present 
 
M Fitzgerald (Deputy Leader and Executive Member: Policy, Governance and People 
Resources) 
 
409. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held 26 March 2021 were signed as a correct 
record. 
 

410. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

411. Questions  
 
None received 
 

412. Public Participation  
 
None received 
 

413. Reports from Outside Body/Scrutiny Groups  
 
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
Councillor Scott provided an overview of the Cumbria Health Scrutiny 
Committee and provided responses to the questions asked by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Councillor Scott explained that the group receives presentations from both 
North and South Acute Trusts including key data and statistics. The Committee 
is also attended by several key stakeholders who answer questions and report 
on known issues. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



The committee makes recommendations to the Chief Operating Officers, 
Cumbria County Council and Members of the Cabinet. 
 
To gather views from other bodies and members, Councillor Scott 
acknowledged that improvements could be made and will work with officers in 
Allerdale to gain insight and comments from members. 
 
Councillor Scott went on to highlight the successes of the merger of the 
Workington GP Practices and that the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee had 
oversight and were able to provide contributions throughout the process.  
 
In relation to resources, Councillor Scott stated that resources were allocated 
fairly between North and South Cumbria, however, as the West Cumberland 
Hospital is in Copeland, Allerdale may not receive the same level of services.  
 
Councillor Scott then answered questions from members in relation to the Covid 
19 Pandemic, forward planning and the merger of GP services.  
 
Councillor Scott also advised that a response to a question relating to the Social 
Value Act would be provided to members after the meeting. 
 
Cumbria LEP Scrutiny Board  
 
Councillor Carmel Bell was unable to attend the meeting and will provide an 
update before the next meeting 
 
Cumbria Police & Crime Panel Joint Committee 
 
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride was unable to attend the meeting and will provide an 
update before the next meeting 
 
West Cumbria Site Stakeholder Group 
 
Councillor Fitzgerald provided an overview of the West Cumbria Site 
Stakeholder Group and provided responses to the questions asked by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The group is split into 6 subgroups; 
 

 Low Level Waste Repository 

 Environmental Health 

 Risk, Hazard and Waste Management 

 Spent Fuel Management and Nuclear Materials 

 Emergency Planning 

 Enablers 
 
All the subgroups report back to the main group. 
 
At the last meeting of the main group, members received a presentation on 
Social Impact and the Supply Chain around Sellafield and discussed the 
Cumbrian Nuclear Prospectus and the Copeland Vision. 
 

Page 4



Councillor Fitzgerald as well as the main group also attends the Risk, Hazard 
and Waste Management and Spent Fuel Management and Nuclear Materials 
Subgroups. An update of the current work of these groups was provided to 
members, which includes the ongoing participation in three large NDA and 
Sellafield Consultations, including Strategy 4. 
 
Councillor Fitzgerald advised that the group receives honest and frank reports 
regarding the situation at Sellafield and that Allerdale is well represented across 
the board with several other members attending meetings of the subgroups. To 
obtain further access to NDA/Sellafield Councillor Fitzgerald also attends a 
monthly meeting with the Stakeholder Relations Manager. 
 
Members then debated ‘communities’ and Councillor Fitzgerald welcomed 
engagement with members regarding topics covered by either the main group 
or any of the subgroups. 
 

414. Draft Council Strategy Delivery Plan 2021/2022 - To consider the Draft 
Strategy Delivery Plan  
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Strategy, Policy and Performance) supported by 
Councillor Fitzgerald (Executive Member: Policy, Governance and People 
Resources) presented the Council Strategy Delivery Plan 2021/22, highlighting 
key areas to members. 
 
When the Council Plan was agreed in 2019 a four-year delivery plan was 
agreed. Due to the pandemic however it was necessary to introduce a one-year 
interim delivery plan for 2021/22.  
 
The new plan recognises the changing state of the pandemic and that the 
emphasis is moving away from response to the recovery phase. 
 
Members were also advised that the interim plan includes additional strategic 
planning and focuses strongly on regeneration, in particular the Workington and 
Maryport projects. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive also clarified to members that although the 
Council will have a clearer picture in relation to Covid-19 in 6 months, important 
decisions need to be made now. 
 
Members asked questions in relation to the impact Covid-19 has on strategic 
planning, public markets, grant/furlough schemes. 
 
Councillor McCarron-Holmes requested that the committee consider using key 
witnesses going forward. The Chair clarified that this would be considered as 
part of the Work Programme. 
 
Members then debated fly tipping; officers confirmed that performance statistics 
relating to fly tipping are included in the Quarterly Performance Reports. 
 

415. Update on the Economic Recovery and Growth Strategy - To consider the 
draft strategy document  
 

Page 5



The Assistant Chief Executive (Strategy, Policy and Performance) provided 
members on the background and updates to the Economic Recovery and 
Growth Strategy. 
 
The strategy is being put forward to replace the existing business growth 
strategy which was adopted in 2016. Since then the Council has changed and it 
has been decided a new strategy is required, and to take advantage of funding 
from the Stronger Towns and Future High Street Schemes. 
 
In 2020, in addition to developing the new Economic Recovery and Growth 
Strategy, Mott McDonald were also commissioned to update the Baseline 
Economic Assessment and to Develop the Workington Town Investment Plan. 
The final draft of the strategy will be presented to Executive for adoption in May 
2021.  
 
Members then asked questions and debated ensued in relation to Town Centre 
Management, Government Funding Distribution and Private Sector 
Partnerships. 
 

 Councillor Grainger left the Meeting   
  
416. Forward Plan  

 
Members noted the contents of the Forward Plan. 
 

417. Work Programme 2021/22  
 
The Chair advised that the meeting dates for 2021/22 have been provisionally 
arranged to align with Executive Meetings. 
 
Members discussed potential topics and agreed to hold an informal session for 
members after the AGM but before the next committee meeting. 
 

The meeting closed at 3.20 pm 
 

Page 6



 

 

Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 18 June 2021 

Executive – 23 June 2021 

 

Quarter 4 Performance Report 2020/21
 

Portfolio holder Councillor Mike Johnson – Leader 

Councillor Marion Fitzgerald - Policy, Governance and 
People Resources Portfolio 

Report from Alex FitzGerald, Policy Manager (Corporate, 
Performance and Information) 

Wards affected   All 

Is this a key decision  No 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 Sets out the Council’s performance at the end of Quarter 4 2020/21 as measured 
by key projects/activities and key performance indicators (KPIs) set out in the 
Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21. 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 That Members note the information contained within the report with a view to 
seeking continuous improvement in performance. 

 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 The Council’s Corporate Performance Management Framework has been aligned 

with the Council Strategy 2020-2030 through the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 
(agreed by Executive in June 2020).  The Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 sets out a 
series of actions and indicators relating to how the Council will deliver against the 
six priority themes in the Council Strategy 2020-2030 over the year. 

3.2 The Quarter 4 Corporate Performance Report for 2020/21 covers the period from 1 
January to 31 March 2021 and focuses on the key actions and performance 
indicators set out in the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21.   

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 

 

3.3 In line with the Council’s Performance Management Framework the Executive and 
Overview and Scrutiny receive quarterly performance reports based on the Council 
Strategy. 

4.0  Corporate Performance  

 
4.1 The Corporate Performance Report is attached as Appendix A and contains: 

 Detail of progress on key actions  

 Detail of performance on key performance indicators  

4.2 The Corporate Performance Report is set out following the six priority themes in the 
Council Strategy 2020-2030: 

 A financially secure council 

 A cleaner, greener Allerdale 

 Invest to grow 

 Outstanding local services 

 Thriving towns and villages 

 Resilient communities 

4.3 The report at Appendix A shows that despite the continuing challenging times 
progress on activities has been good overall in 2020/21, with 7 of the 39 key actions 
completed, 29 green (on track), just 2 amber and 1 red.   

 
4.4 In terms of performance in 2020/21 as measured by key performance indicators 17 

of the 26 indicators attributed a RAG rating were green (on target), 8 were amber 
(close to target), and 1 was red (off target).    Full details are given in the report at 
Appendix A.  

 

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

5.1 Not applicable to this report. 

6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

This is a performance report on delivery against the Council’s priorities as set out in 
the Council Strategy 2020-2030. 

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

 There are no financial implications directly associated with this report. 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

 There are no legal or governance implications directly associated with this report. 

6.4 Risk analysis 

  

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

Page 8



 

 

Indicators and 
performance 
measures are not 
monitored 
effectively 

Loss of focus on 
priorities as set out in 
the Council Strategy so 
ambitions not 
achieved. 
Corrective action is not 
identified early. 

Regular performance 
monitoring. 
Any 
recommendations for 
corrective action are 
followed up. 

Low 

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

Projects within the priority area of ‘Outstanding local services’ in the Council 
Strategy relate specifically to customer satisfaction and service.   

6.6 Equality impacts 

 Equality impacts are considered in the development of individual projects and 
programmes.  There are no negative equality impacts from reporting performance. 

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

There are no health and safety implications directly associated with this report. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

The performance report shows progress against activities intended to improve 
health, wellbeing and community safety outcomes. 

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

The performance report shows progress against activities intended to improve 
environmental and sustainability outcomes. 

6.10 Other significant implications 

None. 
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

Appendix A Q4 Performance Report 2020-21 

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

Council Strategy 2020-2030 https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-
council/council-strategy-2020-2030/ 
 

Council Strategy Interim Delivery 
Plan 2020/21 

https://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=11&MId=4767 
 

 

Page 9

https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-council/council-strategy-2020-2030/
https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-council/council-strategy-2020-2030/
https://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=11&MId=4767
https://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=11&MId=4767


 

 

Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Alex FitzGerald 
Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702719  

Page 10



 

1 

 

Corporate performance report 
 

Quarter 4 / End of year 2020/21  
 
This performance report summarises our performance during the final quarter of 2020/21 
covering the period from 1 January to 31 March 2021.  
 
 

Performance overview 
 
The table below summarises the Quarter 4 and annual position on the projects/activities and 
performance indicators set out in our Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21. 
 
Summary of Quarter 4 
and annual position 

Total Green 
 
 

Amber Red Blue No fixed 
target 
figure1 

No new 
data 

available2 

Projects/activities 39 29 2 1 7 n/a n/a 

KPIs (Q4 position) 40 16 8 2 n/a 13 1 

KPIs (Annual position) 40 17 8 1 n/a 13 1 

Note (Covid-19): Performance in a number of areas was affected by the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and 
the associated close down of certain services and functions, increase in demand for other services, lock down 
of households, and diversion of capacity to critical functions.  Targets, performance ratings and progress 
updates reflect those issues. 

 

Projects/activities:  

There are 39 projects/activities set out in the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 of which at the 
end of Q4: 

 74% are green (on track) 

 18% are completed 

 5% are amber 

 2% are red 
 
The majority of projects and activities set out in the Interim Delivery Plan are on track or 
completed.  There has continued to be a significant amount of work across the organisation 
relating to the pandemic situation in Q4 (work which is expected to continue into 2021/22) 
including: undertaking advisory and enforcement work around safe practices in local 
businesses; continued successful delivery with the county council of the local track and trace 
system; administering various business grant schemes (over £65m paid out to businesses 
over the year); administering test and trace payments for individuals; and working with the 

                                                           
1 No fixed target figure. The pandemic situation has had a significant impact on a number of council 

services making target setting in some cases very difficult. In these cases we are not attributing a red, 
amber or green performance rating but will be tracking trends in performance and comparing to previous 
years where appropriate rather than measuring against a fixed target figure. 
2 No new data available at the time of reporting.  Some of these measures are only reported once a 
year, two have a time lag on the data. The ongoing pandemic situation has also been impacting data 
availability for certain indicators – in particular leisure centre usage as centres have been closed for 
periods in the year. 

Page 11



 

2 

 

visitor sector to develop recovery plans. At the same time day to day services have continued 
to run smoothly.   
 
Other progress in Q4 includes: the adoption of two key strategies focused on key priority 
themes in the Council Strategy and designed to support our communities and businesses 
through recovery and beyond (the Resilient Communities Strategy and the Economic Growth 
and Recovery Strategy); completion of the Allonby-Silloth cycleway extension to enhance the 
area for residents and visitors alike; approval of a revised Climate Change Action Plan 
(developed through a cross party working group) and activity to drive forward the climate 
change agenda; good progress made on green infrastructure and biodiversity projects in our 
communities;  successful purchase of a key property as part of the Maryport regeneration 
programme and good progress on preparing for other purchases and schemes; 
establishment of another two locality based business forums; work underway on the Central 
Way underpass improvement scheme in Workington; Cold to Cosy Homes Scheme launched 
and promoted.  

 
Three projects/activities are reporting some delays or issues, with details given in the tables 
below: 

 Implementation of the Arcus land and property system; 

 Deliver disabled facilities grants and review the Housing Grants and Assistance Policy; 

 Implement the Homeless Strategy action plan.   
 
 

Key performance indicators: 

For this end of year report, there are red/amber/green ratings assigned to KPIs for both Q4 
and for 2020/21.  The figures below relate to year end position rather than the ratings for Q4.  

There are 26 performance indicators attributed a RAG rating for 2020/21 of which: 

 66% were green (on or better than target) 

 31% were amber (close to target) 

 4% were red (off target) 
 
There is one indicator reporting as off target (red) for 2020/21: 

‘Residual household waste per household’ is reported as 561.87kgs against a target of 
479kgs for 2020/21.  This figure (and the associated household recycling figure) is reflective 
of Covid-19 restrictions, with more waste being produced at home and more recycling being 
generated. 
We are working closely with AWSL on service delivery and addressing the service provision 
across Allerdale in terms of both recycling and waste reduction, through a number of 
initiatives and a more focused communication strategy. Our Strategy focuses on known 
problems for residents, including what to recycle and what rubbish to put in which bin, by 
updating our communications information we can divert waste from the general waste stream 
into the recycling stream, thereby driving up recycling and reducing waste tonnage. We will 
start with the waste hierarchy and promote reuse and examine the options for directing 
residents to do things differently.  We are also working with all local authorities in Cumbria, 
under the Cumbria Waste Strategic Partnership, on a number of consultation responses 
relating to the Waste Strategy for England. These impending changes by national 
government may impact the type of recycling collection services provided by local 
governments across the UK and drive action that is required to meet these changes.  
  
 

Page 12



 

3 

 

Of the thirteen indicators with no fixed target figures, one showed a significant improvement 
on 2019/20 figures – numbers of complaints to the council have reduced by just over 50% on 
the 2019/20 figure.  Five indicators showed similar figures for 2019/20 and 2020/21.   
 
Six showed worse figures for 2020/21 than 2019/20, this was as expected in most cases 
such as leisure centre usage figures, numbers of disabled facilities grants approved and 
affordable housing delivery, all of which were anticipated to be heavily impacted by the 
ongoing pandemic and government restrictions.   
 
In common with many areas of the country an area of concern for us continues to be fly 
tipping where we have seen numbers of incidents almost double between 2019/20 and 
2021/22.  Actions to tackle the issue are detailed in the activity update under the ‘Cleaner, 
greener Allerdale’ section of this report. 
 
 
 
 

Definitions 

Projects/activities: 

G Everything is on target / satisfactory progress is being made / no action required 

A 
There are some concerns over achieving deadlines or outputs  / there are issues to rectify, but 
plans are in place to get the project back on track 

R 
There are significant concerns over achieving outputs / there is serious slippage in the timetable / 
there are major issues to rectify 

B Project closed 

 

Key performance indicators: 

G On, or better than, target 


 Improving trend 

A 
Within tolerance of target (up to 10% variance) - some 
action may be required to improve performance 



 No change  

R 
Off target (>10% variance) – action required to improve 
performance 



 Getting worse 

Note: Trend is compared to previous quarter or in a few cases same quarter in the previous year. 

Page 13



 

4 

 

A financially secure council 
Our objectives: Address the projected budget gap    Become self-sufficient by 2030    Become more commercial    Become more 

efficient and productive 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 

status 

Q4 
RAG 

status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Analyse actual and projected financial 
impacts of Covid-19 crisis and 
recovery phase and build into revised 
budget decisions for 2020/21 and medium 
term financial plan 

by March 
2021 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 

Monthly returns continue to be completed and submitted to 
MHCLG on the financial impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and 
officers continue to monitor the financial position on a monthly 
basis. 

Develop and deliver service specific 
recovery plans for our income 
generating services (in particular trade 
waste, estates, and car parking) 

from May 
2020 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 

The impact on our income generating services continues to be 
monitored both through the monthly returns to MHCLG and we 
continue to claim under the Governments income loss scheme.  
The final claim for 2020/21 is due to be completed and submitted 
by the end of this month. 

Review the Council’s Target Operating 
Model and working practices as part of 
our Recovery Strategy  

from June 
2020 

Programmes 
and Projects 

G G 

Continuing to engage and work with staff to identify how we can 
work more flexibly and efficiently when we return to offices post-
Covid, including a range of projects considering how technology 
can support a hybrid worker model. 

Continue a programme of service 
reviews across the council looking at 
cost, quality and delivery mechanisms 
(building in learning from operating during 
the pandemic)  

from June 
2020 

Programmes 
and Projects 

G G 

A number of projects now live that have come from service 
reviews. A project to deliver bins as part of the LATCo went live 
01/04/21. A project to improve efficiency and reliability of our car 
parks and associated machines in Keswick is underway.  Phase 1 
new positioning of parking machines (Keswick only).  Phase 2 
Parking Services review to start in May. 

 

Key performance 
indicators 

2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Q3 
actual 

Q4 
actual 

Q4 
target Trend 

2020/21 
actual 

2020/21 
target 

Progress and management action 
(where red/amber) 

% of council income that 
is from grants, CTax, 
NNDR, fees and 
charges (including 

CTx,NNDR 49%; 
Fees, charges 

etc.40%;  
Gov grants 11% 

 

Reported annually  

tbc 

Reduce 
reliance 

on grants 
over 

longer 
term 

We are likely to see the effect of the 
pandemic in these figures at the end of 
the year, as fees, charges and 
commercial income streams have all been 
hit hard by the pandemic.  

P
age 14



 

5 

 

Key performance 
indicators 

2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Q3 
actual 

Q4 
actual 

Q4 
target Trend 

2020/21 
actual 

2020/21 
target 

Progress and management action 
(where red/amber) 

commercial income 
streams)  

Overall % of budget 
coming from balances 

Net charge to GF 
balances £966k 
against revenue 

expenditure £15,654k 

 

Reported annually  

tbc 

Reduce 
over 

longer 
term 

The 2020/21 budget as agreed in March 
2020 did not identify any revenue budget 
to come from balances.  However, the 
pandemic situation has had budgetary 
impacts.   A further report on the 
budgetary impacts of the pandemic was 
considered by Executive in September. 

Level of forecast budget 
gap 

£2.2m 2021/22 
£2.1m 2022/23 

Reported annually 

£2.2m 2022/23 
£2.3m 2023/24 

Reduce 
over 

longer 
term 

An updated MTFP went to Executive in 
November taking into account an 
assessment of which of the assumptions 
made for 2021 and beyond will need to be 
amended in light of Covid-19, 
postponement of the Spending Review 
and reform to the Business Rates System. 

% of invoiced debt 
collected within 30 days 
of invoicing 

58% 55% 54% 51% 54% Increase   54% Increase  
Percentage is consistent both with 
previous months and previous quarters 
and the full year. 

% of debt outstanding 
for over 90 days 

29% 28% 29% 31% 27% Reduce   29% Reduce  

The average for Q4 debts over 90 days is 
consistent with previous quarters in 
2020/21 and the overall percentage for 
the year. 

NNDR collection rate* 98.48% 29.47% 55.51% 81.60% 96.95% 97.70%  96.95% 97.70% 

Although recovery rates have improved 
performance is down 0.75% against target 
due to second and third lockdown and 
subsequent delayed recovery action.  

Council Tax collection 
rate* 

97.38% 28.85% 56.77% 84.71% 96.79% 97.20%  96.79% 97.20% 

Although recovery rates have improved 
performance is down 0.41% against target 
due to second and third lockdown and 
subsequent delayed recovery action. 

Occupancy rates of 
Council’s property 
portfolio 

91% 91% 94% 93% 93% 90%  93% 90%  

*Trend compared to same period in the previous year.  

P
age 15



 

6 

 

A cleaner, greener Allerdale  
Our objectives: Make sure our neighbourhoods are clean and tidy    Reduce waste and increase recycling    Improve and protect our 

open spaces and green infrastructure    Ensure environmental sustainability is at the heart of our policies    Use our assets to encourage 

green technology 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Tackle and reduce fly tipping through 
enforcement action and educational activity 
focusing resources on known hotspots. 

from March 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G G 

Fly tipping is increasing in the borough month on month. A 
referral has been submitted to the Allerdale Local Focus Hub for 
a multi-agency problem solving approach to be taken for fly-
tipping. The first referral meeting has taken place and included 
partners from AWS, CCC, UU, LDNP, Cumbria Police, Cumbria 
Fire and Rescue, Tivoli and Housing partners. There will be three 
themes of enforcement, engagement and communications 
coming from this project and the first week of action will coincide 
with the Great British Spring Clean 28 May to June 21. Allerdale 
have an internal project in progress to develop fly tipping 
prevention controls at vulnerable sites, which may include the 
installation of cameras and gates at some sites.  

Carry out recycling initiatives and 
educational campaigns to reduce waste  

by March 
2021 

Finance and 
Property  

G B 

The Cumbria Strategic Waste Partnership (CSWP) has released 
communications over 2020-2021 via social media which ABC 
have been able to share and adapt for ABC specifically. The 
CWSP have met with each district council to share information 
and ideas on initiatives to address a range of issues relating to 
waste and recycling. The next meeting will take place in late 
May/early June. This joint approach will support seasonal 
campaigns and issues directly relating to each authority. Our 
website has been updated to ensure our recycling information is 
correct. We have also developed new signs for our bring sites to 
include dos and don’ts on the sites, these have now been 
installed on the main sites and we are working to include stickers 
on the bins with the same information. Currently undertaking work 
to address the issue of trade waste customers using the domestic 
waste stream to dispose of waste with the aim of reducing the 

P
age 16



 

7 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

general household waste tonnage. We will be piloting a small 
area before rolling this out. 

Progress strategic green infrastructure 
and biodiversity projects and encourage 
environmental volunteering: Water 
Environment Grant projects at Siddick Pond; 
improvements to land at Northside near 
Siddick Pond; Workington Nature 
Partnership projects; development of 'Get 
Cumbria Buzzing' sites (12 sites) 

Northside by 
2021 
Other 
projects by 
2022 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 

SIDDICK POND WATER ENVIRONMENT GRANT: Good 
progress continues to be made and all projects are well underway 
and in some cases complete, including reed bed management, 
control of invasive species, water quality and biodiversity survey 
and purchase of new hand-held Power Scythe to facilitate 
vegetation management. Exciting plans for a new wetland area to 
extend the brackish pond and provide new habitat comprising a 
mosaic of scrapes, islands and channels have also been finalised 
and a planning application will be submitted in April or early-May. 
2. NORTHSIDE NON-STATUTORY 
ALLOTMENTS/COMMUNITY PLOTS: Progress on the clearance 
of the site (north section) has been slightly delayed following the 
findings of an asbestos survey. Asbestos removal has been 
incorporated into the tender which will be issued during w/c 12th 
April, with work to commence in May. Following clearance of the 
site, further enhancement works will be undertaken to integrate 
the land with the nature reserve. 3. GET CUMBRIA BUZZING: 
Excellent progress has been made on our "Get Cumbria Buzzing" 
sites, and we have now undertaken work on eight of the twelve 
sites that we are responsible for delivering. This has included the 
creation of extensive new pollinator-friendly habitat at Shore 
Road, Derwent Howe, Oldside and Maryport Coastal Park, while 
existing meadows at Siddick Pond and Harrington Nature 
Reserves have been enhanced with additional wildflower 
planting. The project continues to provide opportunities for 
volunteers and schools to participate. Proposals for the remaining 
sites are being prepared with site improvements to take place 
during the remainder of 2021.  

Develop and start delivery of a Climate 
Change Action Plan 

Developed 
by Sept 
2020 

Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance 

G B 
The revised Action Plan to Address Climate Change has been 
widely consulted on and the comments received built into the plan 
which was submitted to Executive and endorsed at their April 

P
age 17



 

8 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

meeting. The working group is now commencing meetings of the 
task groups to advance and monitor delivery of the plan. 

  

 

Key performance 
indicators 

2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Q3 
actual 

Q4 
actual 

Q4 
target 

Trend 2020/21 
actual  

2020/21 
target 

Progress and management action (where 
red/amber) 

Number of fly tipping 
incidents  

689 328 283 336 351 Reduce  1298 Reduce 
Increase in incidents again in Q4, annual figure 
significantly higher than 2019/20.  Actions to tackle 
the issue detailed in activity update above.  

Number of Fixed 
Penalty Notices 
issued (fly tipping) 

9 0 4 1 1 Increase  6 Increase 
Actions to tackle the issue detailed in activity update 
above. 

% of household 
waste sent for reuse, 
recycling and 
composting* 

33.7% 37.7% 44.2% 36.0% 30.0% 27.0%  36.5% 36.0% 

These figures are reflective of Covid-19 restrictions, 
with more waste being produced at home and more 
recycling being generated.  We are working closely 
with AWSL on service delivery and addressing the 
service provision across Allerdale in terms of both 
recycling and waste reduction, through a number of 
initiatives and a more focused communication 
strategy. Our Strategy focuses on known problems for 
residents, including what to recycle and what rubbish 
to put in which bin, by updating our communications 
information we can divert waste from the general 
waste stream into the recycling stream, thereby 
driving up recycling and reducing waste tonnage. We 
will start with the waste hierarchy and promote reuse 
and examine the options for directing residents to do 
things differently.   

Residual waste per 
household (kgs)* 

522.09 147.81 144.10 133.24 135.47 113.00  561.87 479.00 

% of bins collected on 
scheduled collection 
day 

New 99.90% 99.91% 99.92% 99.89% 99.92%  99.91% 99.92% 
Within tolerance of target – achieving over 99.9% 
collection rate for the year. 

*Trend compared to same period in the previous year.  

P
age 18



 

9 

 

Invest to grow  
Our objectives:  Use our asset portfolio to create new or different opportunities    Work with partners on key economic sites and 

opportunities    Utilise the Allerdale Investment Partnership, the Local Enterprise Partnership and Britain’s Energy Coast to stimulate 

growth     Develop a housing company to provide the right homes in the right places at the right price   

 Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Develop plans for economic recovery 
including a new Economic Growth 
Strategy for Allerdale to guide economic 
development activity to ambitiously rethink 
and rebuild the local economy over the 
longer term 

 
by May 
2021 
(revised 
date) 

Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance 

G G 

The final draft of the economic strategy has been issued to the 
Council. Work on the specific sites identified within the brief has 
begun with a number of stakeholder workshops being held. 
There has a been a slight delay due to some technical mapping 
issues on the individual town plans but this will hopefully not 
result in an overall delay of the commission. 

Deliver the national programmes of 
support grants to small businesses, 
including developing and delivering any 
discretionary schemes to support local 
businesses  

from April 
2020 

Customer 
Operations 

G G 

Majority of LRSG grants paid – most schemes closed on 
31/3/21 with exception of LRSG grant period 16/2/21 - 29/3/21 
(closes May 21) and ARG (closes March 2022).  Payments can 
continue to be made on LRSG until 30/6/21, ARG until 31/5/22.  
Allerdale has made 20,027 grant awards with payments totalling 
£65,766,663 over all the schemes introduced for year 2020/21. 
A new Restart Grant scheme commenced from 1/4/21.  

Develop the Housing Company: existing 
properties let and converted (7 properties); 
develop Phase 2 Programme for future 
years 

 
by 2021  
 

Programme 
Director 
(Maryport) 

G G 

The programme of works to convert the Otley Road building in 
Keswick into affordable homes has now commenced with a 
local construction company leading the build. Works are 
progressing well and the programme is on schedule for a 
handover by September. 

Progress investment and regeneration 
schemes including: 

Review viability options for delivery of new 
business units at Reedlands Road 

by Sept 
2020 
 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

B B 
Project discontinued. Extremely poor ground conditions have 
meant revised foundation option is too expensive making the 
project financially unviable for the Council over the long-term. 

Development of Lillyhall North to provide 
business accommodation (also a 
commercial opportunity for the Council)  

by March 
2021 
 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G G 
Planning permission for the initial infrastructure works has been 
granted. Grant funding received and infrastructure works 
scheduled for completion in 2021. 

P
age 19



 

10 

 

 Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Progress discussions around Lower 
Derwent Valley Regeneration Scheme 
(including a community sports village) 

from June 
2020 
 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G G 

The sports village is one of the priority projects to receive a 
funding allocation through the Workington Town Deal. Other 
funding opportunities are being explored. The Sports Village 
Project Board continues to meet bi-weekly and is progressing a 
number of key workstreams. A business case for the Town Deal 
is required to be developed and approved within 12 months.  

Development of other investment and 
regeneration opportunities with development 
partners and the Allerdale Investment 
Partnership as a priority. 

from June 
2020 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G G 

An updated AIP business plan was approved by the Executive 
in January 2021. Discussions are ongoing with AIP in relation to 
the development of a number of keys sites including 
consideration of the support that AIP can provide to bring 
forward the development of key regeneration projects which 
form part of the Workington Town Deal.  

  

Key performance 
indicators 

2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Q3 
actual 

Q4 
actual 

Q4 
target 

Trend 2020/21 
actual 

2020/21 
target 

Progress and management action (where red/amber) 

% of major planning 
applications 
determined within 
statutory period 

89% 100% 100% 100% 100% 90%  100% 90%  

% of grant monies 
paid out in grants to 
small businesses 

n/a 90% 92%      
100% 
by Oct 
2020

The system of government grant schemes for businesses 
has become increasingly complex since November 2020 
making it now very difficult to produce a simple percentage 
of grants paid out. Progress on grant schemes given in 
activity updates above. 

 

  

P
age 20



 

11 

 

Outstanding local services 
Our objectives:  Make it easy for customers to contact us    Ensure we get it right first time    Be bold in our use of technology    Look 

at different and better ways to deliver services 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Deliver technology projects to 
provide improved digital 
platforms and self-service 
options including: 

 implementation of the Arcus 
land and property system 

 
 
 
by May 
2021 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services/ 
Customer 
Operations  

G A 

Building Control and Planning now live.  North Lincs have been 
commissioned to undertake data extraction for regulatory services. There 
are some complexities with this that may impact on timescale in getting 
Regulatory Services live.    

 purchase and 
implementation of a new 
finance, payroll and HR 
system 

by March 
2021 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 
Post tender negotiations almost completed and moving to project 
implementation. Kick off meeting held and project team and work streams 
identified.    

Review the Council’s Target 
Operating Model and working 
practices as part of our 
Recovery Strategy  

from May 
2020 

Programmes 
and Projects 

G G 

Continuing to engage and work with staff to identify how we can work more 
flexibly and efficiently when we return to offices post-Covid, including a 
range of projects considering how technology can support a hybrid worker 
model. 

Continue a programme of 
service reviews across the 
council looking at cost, quality 
and delivery mechanisms 
(building in learning from 
operating during the pandemic) 

from May 
2020 

Programmes 
and Projects 

G G 

A number of projects now live that have come from service reviews. A 
project to deliver bins as part of the LATCo went live 01/04/21. A project to 
improve efficiency and reliability of our car parks and associated machines in 
Keswick is underway.  Phase 1 new positioning of parking machines 
(Keswick only).  Phase 2 Parking Services review to start in May. 

P
age 21



 

12 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Ensure Allerdale Waste 
Services is delivering against 
performance targets 

from April 
2020 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 

AWS has completed its first year of operation in a challenging environment.  
The numbers of missed bins continues to reduce and the collection rate has 
been 99.9%.  The management continue to prioritise returning for those 
missed collections within 48 hours.   Minimal breaches of health and safety 
continue and the discipline established of having a continual regime of crew 
monitoring and inspections continues. The impact of Covid-19 on the service 
has been minimised and has enabled the service to continue each collection 
stream with limited disruption. Lateral Flow Testing for the workforce has 
now been introduced. Financial management has allowed for a revision to 
the service charge and an agreed budget and savings target for next year.  

  

Key performance 
indicators 

2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Q3 
actual 

Q4 
actual 

Q4 
target 

Trend  2020/21 
actual 

2020/21 
target 

Progress and management action (where 
red/amber) 

% of abandoned calls 12% 4% 5% 4% 7% 7%  5% 7%

Significant improvement on the previous year’s 
performance with the reallocation of resources to 
ensure service delivery.  Consistently better than 
target for Q1-Q3. 

Customer satisfaction 
(ring back) 

96% 90% 89% 91% 98% 90%  92% 90%

Performance demonstrates that public confidence in 
customer services remained high and has not been 
adversely affected by changes in the way the public 
now contact us.  

Number of complaints 1280 158 185 137 161 Reduce   646 Reduce 

A very slight increase in complaint numbers between 
Q3 and Q4, but figures for 2020/21 at half the level of 
the previous year.   

% change in website 
unique page views  

New 29.7% 28.2% 64.5% 21.0% 

5% (6 
month 
rolling 
av.)

 36.1% 

5% (6 
month 
rolling 
av.)

This is a rolling measure looking at the change in 
unique page views over the past year.  Percentages 
have been consistently high over 2020/21 as more 
people have been looking for information via our 
website. 

% change in new 
website users 

New 
237.1

% 
46.4% 

164.6
% 

33.7% 

30% (6 
month 
rolling 
av.) 

 101.8% 

30% (6 
month 
rolling 
av.) 

This is a rolling measure looking at the change in 
new website users.  Percentages have been high 
over 2020/21 as more people have been looking for 
information via our website during the pandemic.  

P
age 22



 

13 

 

Facebook reach rate  New 18.6% 27.5% -23.3% 11.8% 

10% (6 
month 
rolling 
period) 

 9.0% 

10% (6 
month 
rolling 
period) 

This is a rolling measure looking at change in the 
reach of our Facebook posts.  It does fluctuate 
considerably across the year, but has achieved target 
or better than target for 3 out of the 4 quarters. 

Facebook engagement 
rate 

New 10.7% 9.9% 8.9% 9.0% 

10% (6 
month 
rolling 
av.)

 10.0% 

10% (6 
month 
rolling 
av.)

This is a rolling measure looking at how far people 
have engaged with our Facebook posts (for example 
by sharing a post). On or within tolerance of target for 
the year.  

Self-service digital 
transactions as a % of 
total transactions 
(Report it, Apply for it 
and Complaint and 
Compliments) 

New 68% 39% 60% 55% 
Baselin
e year  57% 

Baseline 
year

Figures have fluctuated throughout the year, in part 
driven by increases in the volume of online 
applications particularly for business grants and test 
and trace payments at points in the year.  

Overall time ICT 
systems available for 
use  

100% 100% 100% 100% 99.9% 99.9%  99.9% 99.9%
The IT team continue to ensure that ICT systems 
support the organisation effectively, enabling almost 
all staff to work from home seamlessly.  

 

  

P
age 23



 

14 

 

Thriving towns and villages 
Our objectives:  Support businesses    Create deliverable town plans that enable our towns to adapt to the changing nature of the high 

street   Ensure there are suitable, affordable, decent homes for all   Give people a reason to visit our towns (festivals, events, cultural and 

sporting activities, markets)    Increase the number of people living in our town centres    Build communities, not just homes 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4  
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Maryport Regeneration Programme: 
work to access funding from the Future 
High Street Fund and Heritage Action 
Zone and development of the town 
centre and waterfront plans, building in 
new intelligence about the impacts of 
the pandemic.   

Submit FHS 
business case 
by end July 
2020 

Programme 
Director 
(Maryport) 

G G 

FHS Programme - Purchase has now gone ahead on 
Christchurch and preparatory work to purchase other key 
buildings is well advanced and awaiting final confirmation of 
funding from central government. The Advisory Group has 
agreed on the creation of two sub groups to lead on Delivery and 
Development. In relation to the HAZ programme, preferred 
options have been developed for the Town Hall and 1 Senhouse 
Street projects and architects have been appointed for the next 
stages. The shopfront grant package has been prepared and is 
ready to be launched. The planning application for the facade 
improvements to Heron Foods has been submitted. 

Workington Town Deal:  
- Develop investment plan building in 
intelligence about the impacts of the 
pandemic 
- Develop Delivery Plan once funding 
secured for 2021 onwards 

 
by August 
2020 
from 2021 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G G 

A funding offer of £23.1million was made by Government as part 
of the budget announcement on 3 March 2021. Completed 
Heads of Terms accepting this offer were returned to 
Government on 23 March 2021.  

Undertake business engagement and 
support activity to enable the Council 
to better understand businesses issues, 
challenges and ideas and feed those 
through to local, regional and national 
forums. 

from April 
2020 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) &  
Strategy, Policy 
and 
Performance   

G G 

The establishment of business forums has been achieved in 
Wigton and the Solway Coast to complement those facilitated in 
Workington and Maryport. Timely news and advice for nearly 
2,000 business subscribers continues with our weekly business 
eNewsletter. The Business Services Coordinator chairs meeting 
of the Better Business for All (BBfA) initiative in the North West 
with cooperative work delivering the first BBfA webinar for 
businesses across the region planned for 7 April 2021. Specialist 
services have been procured by competitive tender to produce a 
series of shop local films that will be used at scheduled times 

P
age 24



 

15 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4  
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

throughout the year to encourage residents to spend with local 
businesses. 

Undertake work with partners to 
support the recovery of the visitor 
economy including assessing the 
impact, considering appropriate 
interventions and delivering actions as 
part of a recovery plan for the visitor 
sector, markets and events.  

from June 
2020 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) &  
Strategy, Policy 
and 
Performance   

G G 

A number of recovery events to support the visitor economy once 
lockdown eases being planned for 2021/22. They are: a Cycling 
Festival in Silloth in September; a Cumbria Residents' Week in 
October 2021 which has the support of all Cumbrian local 
authorities; a Taste of the Sea festival in Maryport; a North 
Allerdale festival, theme to be determined, and Coast Alive, a 
festival of arts and performance. Taste Cumbria Cockermouth is 
also scheduled to run again in September and December 2021. 
Other new product development projects include commissioning 
feasibility to position Allerdale as the UK's first eBike destination 
and a project to market our fishing heritage to visitors. Working 
with partners on the Cumbria Tactical Visitor Management 
Group, plans have been made to welcome back visitors once 
Covid-19 restrictions ease. This includes attract and disperse 
activity e.g. we have created motorhomes content on Visit 
Allerdale to encourage owners to come to Allerdale. Close work 
with Copeland continues on joint breakfast briefings and some of 
the recovery projects. 

Complete the Allonby to Silloth 
coastal cycle path extension to 
support the visitor economy and health 
and wellbeing agenda 

Open by 2021 
Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G B 

The project is now complete aside for some additional works that 
will be funded from a small project underspend. It is envisioned 
that the additional works will include car park improvements 
along the route and the resurfacing of an existing section of 
coastal path south of Allonby. Third party land ownership legal 
issues need to be overcome to enable these works to be 
undertaken.  

Deliver targeted public realm 
schemes in our towns including: 

 Work with the county council to 
consider temporary physical 
changes to road and pavement 
layouts to support our town centre 

 
from June 
2020 
 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington)  

G G 
A four person mobile marshal service planned to commence work 
again in Q1 2021/22 to support the reopening of the economy in 
line with the roadmap milestones. 

P
age 25



 

16 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4  
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

businesses with ongoing social 
distancing measures 

 Progress the Central Way 
underpass improvement scheme 

Phase 1 by 
March 2021 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 

Start date was delayed until 1 March but work is now well 
underway and progressing well. The scheduled completion date 
for the main contract works (undertaken by Thomas Armstrong 
Ltd) is 23 May. This will be followed by installation of the artwork 
and we are aiming for overall completion by 11 June. The road 
closure is likely to remain in force until then. 

Ensure our regulatory services work 
to assist businesses as much as 
possible, such as efficient planning, 
building control, licensing and 
environmental health processes, 
implementing improvements to the 
provision of services to help businesses  

from March 
2020 

Governance 
and Regulatory 
Services 

A G 

Regulatory services communications with business has been 
streamlined with our weekly eNewsletter to businesses being the 
primary method of communication complemented by bespoke 
communications as required. The tender to create a business 
facing website has been awarded and will be live by July 2021 
and will become the other primary source of regulatory 
information for business. We have also commissioned impactful 
graphics that highlight and signpost our regulatory services which 
we will start utilising by May 2021. 

Undertake work to understand and 
address impacts of the pandemic on 
the housing market over short, 
medium and longer term  

from June 
2020 

Strategy, Policy 
and 
Performance 

G G 

Supported housing accommodation in Allerdale is no longer 
available following the loss of Supporting People funding on 31 
March.  The immediate and medium term impact means that the 
local authority will no longer be able to move-on from temporary 
emergency housing into supported housing.  A countywide 
strategic review on supported housing will commence in April to 
look at how all agencies can improve services and seek new 
ways of working to address this issue.  The direct move into 
social rented locally will prove challenging for housing options 
teams particularly for those who have been picked up under the 
"Everyone in Programme".   There are vacant social housing 
properties advertised through Cumbria Choice, however, access 
into social housing for complex clients who have a history of ASB 
or rent arrears are being by-passed as the RPs see these clients 
as a risk. The housing market for discounted sale properties is 
very active with 13 new applicants registering an expression of 
interest in Q4, and 19 formal applications for properties that have 

P
age 26



 

17 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4  
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

been released by developers in Wigton and two sites in 
Cockermouth.  The interest in the self-build custom house 
building market is also growing, we have awarded 3 grants to 
self-build customers during the last quarter and continuing to see 
an increase in enquiries.  General housing market is buoyant and 
no evidence at this time to suggest that it is slowing down.  

Deliver disabled facilities grants and 
review the Housing Grants and 
Assistance Policy in light of the 
pandemic. 

from April 
2020 

Governance 
and Regulatory 
Services 

A R 

Delivery of Disabled Facilities Grants has continued throughout 
the year with significant changes to processes. The Team have 
processed 172 new DFG referrals which is significantly less than 
the previous year as expected (previous year 270). Due to 
Housing Manager leading on Track and Trace during the Covid-
19 pandemic a review of the Housing Grants and Assistance 
Policy has not been completed. An action plan will be pulled 
together in the new financial year to ensure the policy is reviewed 
and amended where appropriate.   

 

Key performance 
indicators 

2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Q3 
actual 

Q4 
actual 

Q4 
target 

Trend 2020/21 
actual 

2020/21 
target 

Progress and management action 
(where red/amber) 

% of invoices from 
local Cumbrian 
businesses paid within 
14 days 

93.3% 97.8% 95.6% 95.2% 96.6% 98.0%  97.0% 98.0%
Target of 98% not achieved although 
significant consistent improvement from 
2019/20 across 2020/21.  

% of Council spend 
(less than £50k) on 
goods and services 
with local (Cumbrian) 
suppliers  

47.40% 43.96% 47.82% 41.23% 49.63% 50.00%  45.66% 50.00%

Spend up to £50K with local suppliers is 
just slightly below the 50% target.  
Across all values the amount of spend 
with local suppliers is better than target.  
Both figures show improvement from 
Q3 to Q4.   Number of initiatives in Q4 
to encourage SMEs and sole traders, 
including advertising opportunities on 
social media and increasing threshold 
before going to competitive quote - this 
encourages those bidders who do not 
have the time and expertise to take part 

% of all Council spend 
on goods and services 
with local (Cumbrian) 
suppliers 

51.48% 62.33% 63.60% 43.26% 58.92% 50.00%  57.03% 50.00%

P
age 27



 

18 

 

Key performance 
indicators 

2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Q3 
actual 

Q4 
actual 

Q4 
target 

Trend 2020/21 
actual 

2020/21 
target 

Progress and management action 
(where red/amber) 

in a competitive process to bid for 
Council contracts. Buyers are still 
required to demonstrate value for 
money in all procurements. 

Numbers of affordable 
homes delivered 

54 0 5 0 7 
Not 

targeted  12 
Not 

targeted

Delivery of affordable homes is 
determined by developers.  It is 
apparent from the total year figure (12 
delivered) that Covid 19 has impacted 
on delivery rates compared to previous 
years. We are aware there are more 
affordables in the pipeline, but these 
have not been completed at this time.  

Full Plans determined 
within 5 weeks 
(Building Control) 

84% 100% 100% 94% 98% 85%  98% 85%  

% of Local Land 
Charges Searches 
carried out within 10 
working days 

99.4% 100% 99.9% 99.7% 97.6% 100%  99.3% 100%  

% of minor and other 
planning applications 
determined within 
statutory period 

90% 95.4% 88.8% 81.0% 87.0% 90%  91.0% 90%
Performance improved in Q4 after dip in 
Q3, over the year target has been met. 

No. of housing units 
granted planning 
permission 

380 65 93 94 20 84  272 339 

At the start the pandemic a number of 
the major housebuilders went on 
furlough. They were not submitting 
applications until later in the year. Given 
the length of time applications take to 
negotiate and consider, many weren’t 
determined until after year end. 

Number of DFGs 
approved 

162 19 20 24 18 Increase  81 Increase  

 

  

P
age 28



 

19 

 

Resilient communities  
Our objectives:  Promote healthy, active lifestyles    Address community safety issues    Engage with our communities, and our town 

and parish councils    Prevent and reduce homelessness    Address inequalities 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Work with GLL to plan for 
reopening and future operation 
of leisure centres including 
restarting the Healthwise Scheme 
to deliver exercise on referral 

from June 
2020 

Finance and 
Property 

G G 

Centres have been closed during the Q4 period. Allerdale were 
successful in a National Leisure Recovery Fund application which will 
support outsourced leisure operators to open up facilities with a viable 
offer while the sector re-establishes the services. From 12 April all 
centres will open (Keswick and Maryport will be gym only), with a limited 
offer following the guidelines on swimming and health and fitness activity. 

Deliver a £140k grants pot to 
support sporting clubs and 
associations to improve 
accessibility, participation and to 
support recovery from impacts of 
the Coronavirus pandemic 

by March 
2021 

Finance and 
Property 

G B 
All funding has been allocated. 22 schemes have been supported, 
resulting in a total project spend of around £490k once all projects 
completed.  

Further develop the Allerdale 
Local Focus Hub to drive a 
thriving families approach with 
existing and new partners 
including responding to the 
ongoing impact of lockdown and 
continued social distancing 
measures.  

from April 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G G 

The Allerdale Local Focus Hub meetings have continued delivering 
problem solving activity during the national lockdown in quarter four and 
the partnership relationships have proved to be so valuable during this 
difficult time. 25 referrals were received to the Allerdale Local Focus Hub 
for multi-agency action during quarter four. Work is ongoing with Every 
Life Matters and the Childrens Trust Board. There was a decrease in 
overall levels of ASB from 176 in January to 156 in February (-20/-11%). 
There was also a decrease in reports for Covid-19, from 124 to 106. 

P
age 29



 

20 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Provide advice and guidance, 
along with undertaking 
investigation and enforcement 
activity, to support Covid-19 
restrictions on businesses and 
help them provide safe 
environments. 

from April 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G G 

The team have continued to provide advice and guidance to businesses 
that are open and those who were closed from 31/12/20 but have queries 
about reopening. Number of complaints have fallen as a result of the third 
lockdown but issues around businesses being open when they shouldn't, 
social distancing and face coverings being the main issues. Compliance 
has been by engaging and education so no notices have been served 
this Q4 

Undertake test and trace 
activity in partnership with 
Cumbria County Council. 

from June 
2020 

Programme 

Director 

(Maryport) 
G G 

Figures have continued to fall throughout the period allowing the team to 
focus on key cases and outbreak control and management.  

Develop a Resilient 
Communities Strategy setting 
out how we can support 
communities across the district as 
we move out of the current 
restrictions and into recovery. 

by Aug 2020 
Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance 

G B 
Resilient Communities Strategy approved by Executive in February 2021.  
Implementation Plan now in development through a council-wide officer 
group. 

Deliver the Hardship Fund to 
support those on the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme and others 
experiencing financial hardship as 
a result of the pandemic. 

from June 
2020 

Customer 
Operations 

G G 
The scheme is now fully operational and grants award as claims are 
processed without delay.  A total of £645,866 paid out to 2880 recipients 
via credits to their council tax accounts. 

Implement the Homeless 
Strategy action plan including a 
focus on prevention activity and 
ongoing work to help the 
additional people housed during 
the pandemic crisis to remain in 
accommodation. 

from June 
2020 

Customer 
Operations 

A A 

Homelessness Strategy still in development. All rough sleepers have 
been accommodated during lockdown and the team have been very 
successful in moving people on into permanent accommodation. We 
have been collating weekly stats to send to MHCLG and continue to work 
with them to improve services and allocate additional funds to Allerdale. 
We are currently progressing the Rough Sleeping Accommodation 
Programme fund. 

P
age 30



 

21 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q3 
RAG 
status
  

Q4 
RAG 
status 

Commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Progress and launch the Cold 
to Cosy Homes Scheme – 
working towards launch in autumn 
2020. 

by Oct 2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

A B 
Scheme went live in Q3 with further promotional activity undertaken 
during Q4. 

  

Key performance 
indicators 

2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Q2 
actual 

Q3 
actual 

Q4 
actual 

Q4 
target 

Trend 2020/21 
actual 

2020/21 
target 

Progress and management action (where 
red/amber) 

Leisure centre usage - 
Workington 

268,172 0 21704 13434 0 Increase n/a 41,933 Increase Centre closures due to Covid-19 restrictions 
have had a significant impact on user figures 
throughout 2020/21.  Centres partially 
reopened 12 April. 

Leisure centre usage - 
Cockermouth 

174,476 0 10281 20229 0 Increase n/a 23,715 Increase 

% of homeless 
decisions made within 
guideline 56 days 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100% 100%  

% of successful 
homeless preventions 
and relief outcomes 

54% 56% 43% 56% 65% 50%  55% 50%  

Time taken to process 
Housing Benefit new 
claims (no. of days) 

7 13 11 11 12 15  12 15  

Time taken to process 
Council Tax new claims 
(no. of days) 

13 20 17 18 18 20  18 20  

Time taken to process 
Housing 
Benefit/Council Tax 
change of 
circumstances (no. of 
days) 

3 3 4 4 4 4  4 4  

 

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 32



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 June 2021 

Outside Body and Joint Committee Appointments 

 
Note: Members were asked to provide responses to the following questions 
 
During your time on the body(s) - 
  
1.    What is the number/frequency of meetings? 
  
2.    How many meetings have you attended?  
  
3.    Do you believe that representing the Council on the body adds value? 
  
4.    What actions have been taken during the duration of your appointment which  

have added value to the Council? 
  
5.    What actions have been taken during the duration of your appointment which  

have added value to the body? 
  
6.    Do you consider representation to be essential to the work of the Council and  

delivery of its service areas? 
  
7.    Do you wish to make any further comments with regards to your appointment on  

the body? 
 

Outside Body / 
Joint Committee 

Feedback 

Allerdale Citizens 
Advice Bureau 

1 Meetings are Bi-Monthly,  
2 I have attended 3 meetings  
3 Yes as it means we have a connection & can 4 see how 
public money is used. 
5 None yet 
6 Don’t really know 
7 I will know more as I get involved 
 

Allerdale Disability 
Association 

It is very important, we help people with disabilities in the 
community in many ways, it would be visible if Council was 
not present on the board. 
The Association is run on funding, the councillor present can 
guide on ways and methodology of getting funding 
Not had an opportunity to attend any meetings this year. 
 
I have only attended one meeting. This was due to me not 
receiving invites to attend their meetings or they were at a 
time when I was unavailable. The Covid restrictions have had 
an impact. 
Even though my involvement was curtailed due to 
circumstances beyond my control and also a political decision 
to replace me I do feel that being involved is beneficial and 
adds purpose to both the Council and the committees. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 June 2021 

Outside Body and Joint Committee Appointments 

 

Allerdale 
Investment 
Partnership 

1 Board meets every three months. There are also monthly 
informal catch-up meetings as well as impromptu meetings as 
and when necessary to discuss matters as they arise. 
2 All. 
3 Yes.  Presence on the Board is essential as this is a 
partnership and plans cannot be actioned without the 
agreement of both partners. 
4 Completion of Workington Travelodge and planning of 
future projects. 
5 Completion of Workington Travelodge and planning of 
future projects. If these go ahead, they will benefit both 
partners.  
6 Council does not necessarily have in house the skills and 
expertise that the partner can bring to the table as part of the 
process of deciding which development proposals are most 
suitable for the partnership to engage in.  With the decrease 
in funding from central government, the Council needs to 
work towards self-sufficiency and to find alternative sources 
of income so that service levels are maintained.  Having a 
partner well versed in investment and project strategy is an 
essential tool for the Council. 
7 No, thank you. 
 
I was appointed to the AIP Board in January 2020 the Board 
usually meets every 2/3 months as well as monthly update 
meetings.  I have attended all the meetings. I believe 
representing the Council on this Outside Body adds value as 
it is a partnership, the Board cannot progress things without 
all agreeing. The AIP Board have delivered several projects 
examples are Travelodge, Ashfield Road Phase 2 and we are 
planning future projects that will benefit all parties. It is 
essential to have representation on the AIP Board and work 
with our partners, we all bring different skills and expertise to 
deliver projects for Allerdale.  With Government budget 
restraints this is a good way to look at generating income 
from other sources. 
 

Cumbria 
Community 
Foundation West 
Cumbria Panel 

As part of the committee we have delivered computers to a 
number of people and passed a lot of funding to a lot more. 
 
1. 4 per month 
2. Approximately 6 
3. Yes, all Borough councils represented  
4. Representing the Borough council  
5. Able to add my approval or not for grants on behalf of ABC 
to schools, sports bodies etc. 
6. Adding value by engaging with CCF to fulfil the need of 
providing financial aid democratically to those in need. 

Page 34



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 June 2021 

Outside Body and Joint Committee Appointments 

 

7. To repeat, ALL councils are represented therefore making 
this a democratic body to enable individuals/groups to 
function. 
 
Unfortunately I only attended one meeting which was at 
Allonby then the Covid pandemic stopped everything.  When 
the first online meeting was to happen I was without internet 
for roughly six weeks. 
The next online meeting after that I was called into work so 
couldn't attend.  
It's safe to say I haven't had any invite from CCF since last 
summer. 
3, yes representing the council on this body was very 
valuable, you are using your experience as a councillor to 
help others, It's what we do . 
4, although I only attended the one meeting I would like to 
think my contribution helped make decisions and gives the 
council some positive reflection.  
5, although very short lived due to the pandemic and other 
issues as stated, I would like to think I contributed wisely and 
helped people/organisations using my council experience.  
6, Absolutely yes , I see this body as another council like 
organisation,  and I believe local councils should use the 
experience and knowledge councillors have to help people 
and organisations in that area. 
7, obviously no one seen the pandemic coming and what 
disruption it was going to cause.  
All going well I would have represented the council many 
times, but unfortunately with no internet in a lockdown then 
being called into work I couldn't attend.  
What I will say is, what a fantastic group of people and well 
run organisation helping people and groups throughout 
Cumbria. 
 

Cumbria Health 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

The meetings take place every 2 months and alternate 
between Kendal and Carlisle, since Covid we have completed 
them via live teams meetings. 
I have 100% attendance record in the meetings and 
completed additional working groups and hospital visits 
looking at staff team fives and morning communication 
sessions in Maryport and Cockermouth.  I was appointed to 
the committee September 2019. 
Yes, a different perspective always adds value. Local NHS - 
we were able to support them with homelessness 
I feel as part of sitting on outside bodies it would be beneficial 
to deliver a report back to Council periodically. Something to 
full council that informs all members of issues raised and 
outcome implemented 

Page 35



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 June 2021 

Outside Body and Joint Committee Appointments 

 

District members are elected into the vice chair position 
annually, I have recently covered the vice chair position Some 
district members do not attend meetings regularly and it’s 
important to get input from both District and County Council 
Members. 
Not essential to ABC however, interaction of different bodies 
can only up skill members and improve cross organisation 
working. 
It’s been difficult as the initial training on how the NHS is 
funded and linked together was delayed. Then Covid came 
along and training had to be cancelled, as a new member I 
have been learning as we go but it has been beneficial 
 

Cumbria Tourist 
Board 

I was appointed in 2019 I’ve attended 1 full board meeting in 
Staveley, Kendal just before the pandemic. Since then there 
has been virtual meetings once a month, I cannot always 
attend. I believe they have done very well to survive this 
pandemic with the tourism sector being decimated. I would 
like to see closer contact between CT & ABC. Going forward 
ABC tourism has opportunity to expand its presents 
worldwide through CT 
 

Energy Coast 
West Cumbria Ltd 

I was appointed in February 2020, the BEC Board meets 
quarterly.  I try to attend all meetings and have submitted my 
apologies to 2 meetings, but it has been arranged for a proxy 
to attend on Allerdale’s behalf when I am not available. It is 
important that the council maintains an effective link with 
BEC. This link adds value to the council in terms of helping to 
further our regeneration agenda in partnership with others, 
but it also provides BEC with an important link to the 
Council’s regeneration programmes. BEC have delivered 
several regeneration projects in West Cumbria that have 
added to the overall economic prosperity of the area. The 
Council’s ongoing relationship with BEC is important to the 
organisation in order to ensure that they have a solid 
understanding of the council’s regeneration priorities. 
Representation on BEC is important. A key aspiration of the 
Council is regeneration. This links to the Council strategy’s 
strategic themes of invest to grow, thriving towns and villages 
and resilient communities. BEC are potentially a key partner 
in fulfilling these aspirations. The Council are a part owner of 
the company and so it is important that there is continued 
engagement with the organisation. 
 

Harrington 
Harbour & Dock 
Board 

5 meetings  in two years  2019-2021 
I have attended all meetings 

Page 36



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 June 2021 

Outside Body and Joint Committee Appointments 

 

Being in a position to act swiftly to obtain  advise to resolve 
problems regarding Safety  financial assistance for 
emergency repairs and legal advice when needed 
Actions to take legal advice regarding the status of 
HH&DB  Planning a forward business plan to be financially 
independent  
Working closely together and in unison for  better harbour 
facilities exploring all avenues of  financial input we are fully 
aware that the biggest problem is the funding of dredging the 
Harbour 
Again the Pandemic has prevented  or slowed down some 
positive outcomes  A fund raising group has been formed by 
encouraging and informing  local  Residents of future 
intended developments  on and around  the Marina  A 
consultancy  is now drafting improvements on the 
Marina  through the efforts of HH&DB 
Yes I do consider representation on the Committee is vital 
since it is in the financial interest  of ABC to be involved in the 
future transformation of Harrington Harbour into a busy 
Port  for both  
Leisure and Tourism that will be an asset to be proud of 
The local economy will also benefit from the success of the 
efforts of HH&DB. 
 
There have been two meetings of HHDB since last May but I 
can't remember how many meetings there were in the 
previous Council year (2019-20) and I can't find any record of 
them. 
 As far as i know, I attended them all. 
The Council, as freehold owner of the Harbour, has the legal 
duty to appoint the members of the Board, whose duty is then 
solely to the Board. Board members are appointed by the 
Council but are not the Council's representatives. 
The Board, has continued, within its limited resources, to 
oversee the governance and operation of the Harbour in 
accordance with the 1902 Order constituting the Board and 
the relevant navigation and harbour legislation. The Board, 
with the Council as owner of the Harbour, is in the process of 
clarifying - with some urgency - their respective 
responsibilities for the Harbour. 
As for 4. 
Appointment of Harbour Board members by the Council is a 
requirement of the 1902 Order. 
See point 1. Details of meetings of the Board and other 
relevant documents are public, and should be published 
somewhere. This is in hand. 
These meetings are Ad Hoc, 4 meetings have taken place in 
the last 2 years and I have attended 3. I believe representing 

Page 37



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 June 2021 

Outside Body and Joint Committee Appointments 

 

the Council on this Outside Body keeps all parties informed 
and maintains effective links between the Harbour Board and 
the Council. 
 

Lake District 
National Park 
(LDNP) Authority 

1-3 per month, it varies. 
Approx. 23 meetings attended plus training and familiarisation 
sessions, site visits and regional area visits. 
Definitely, I can represent Allerdale constituent’s views, fears 
and priorities of those communities living in and around 
LDNP. I also find out and hear the views and priorities of 
other Councillors, be they Parish, District or County as well as 
the Secretary of State appointees 
By bringing experiences and learning back to Council from 
extensive training sessions and site visits attended as well as 
by attending Development Control Committee (DCC), 
Authority and Governance meetings in addition to being party 
to their Covid response. This has aided my professional input 
into meetings at ABC. Experiences of virtual LDNPA 
meetings has also brought the better ideas to Allerdale. 
I have brought my 10 years as Development Panel member 
experience as well as the many years involvement with 
Allerdale and LDNP planning matters which included Local 
plans and Secretary of State planning appeals and judicial 
review. This experience has shaped my input, questions and 
actions (ie moving approval or refusal, most importantly with 
material planning reasons) at DCC meetings in particular. My 
experience as a Councillor has similarly aided my 
involvement and questioning at meetings other than DCC.  
I certainly do consider representation essential. It is 
imperative that the constituents living and/or working in and 
around LDNP have a voice and representation by an elected 
member.  
: I am uniquely qualified to represent Allerdale as the 
representative on LDNPA as I was brought up, attended 
Infants, Junior and Senior schools in LDNP and was married 
at St Kentigern’s Church in Keswick as well as working in an 
around the LDNP and like most people my leisure activities 
were also centred in and around the Lakes as well as having 
family and friends in the park. 
  
Because I have spent most of my life living and working in or 
next to the LDNP and as a Councillor, the DCC and DP 
memberships plus Secretary of State Inquiries and Judicial 
Review attendances must make me one of the most 
experienced in this particular area where knowledge, 
objectivity and professionalism are extremely important as it 
is one of the most publicly attended of committees/panels. 
  

Page 38



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 June 2021 

Outside Body and Joint Committee Appointments 

 

Risk & Hazard 
Reduction and 
Waste Group 

1 Irregular intervals.  Pandemic has caused some disruption 
to the meetings schedule over the past year. 
2 Attended the most recent but not sure how many meetings 
there have been in total. 
3 Yes, I think that Sellafield Ltd and the nuclear industry play 
a crucial role in the culture and economy of West Cumbria 
and that it is very important that the Council is represented on 
committees where nuclear issues are discussed at both a 
national and local level. 
4 Regular updates on the Nuclear Decommissioning 
Programme, responses to the NDA Strategy 4 and Business 
Plan. It is useful to be able to discuss responses with other 
stakeholders present at these meetings. 
5 The discussion around the consultations and regular 
updates are of benefit to the Council as well as to 
representatives of other organisations within the group. 
6 Yes.  As stated above, the nuclear industry is of huge 
significance to Allerdale Borough Council.  West Cumbria will 
be directly affected by any changes within that industry.  It is 
therefore essential to be part of the discussion process. 
7 No, thank you. 
 
A typical WCSSG Meeting consists of  social impact updates 
from the NDA and Sellafield Ltd 
 NDA are responsible  for  operations all nuclear sites except 
the MOD so their reports are much wider than Sellafield and 
Drigg 
NDA are responsible  for transfer of radioactive materials 
from their decommissioning  sites to Sellafield for long- term 
storage 
Sellafield Ltd are responsible for  waste management  and 
decommissioning work on Site, and overall site-management 
Both organisations contribute to social welfare activities in the 
local area, as do some of their Supply chains. 
Sellafield Ltd are responsible for post-operational clean-up, 
POCO,  of each facility up to the point where any hazards are 
reduced to  
a level safe enough to handover  to their Major Project 
Partners in civil, electrical, mechanical and process 
engineering. With some facilities this could take some years. 
At all times both NDA and Seĺlafield Sites policy is 
minimisation of hazards and overall cost-reduction. Therefore 
priority is given to facilities considered to be highest risk. 
The peak programme with Project Partners is expected to run 
to at least 2035. 
All NDA and Seĺlafield future plans/ funding opportunities are 
aired here. They need to Ensure suitable workforce training 

Page 39



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 June 2021 

Outside Body and Joint Committee Appointments 

 

for locals and that West Cumbria remains viable for 20 years. 
WCSSG supports 6 Technical sub-groups.  
The Site needs a vibrant West Cumbria to maintain supply 
chains 
 

Solway Coast 
AONB Joint 
Advisory 
Committee 

I was appointed to the board of the AONB Joint Advisory 
Committee in 2019 Unfortunately due to certain 
circumstances I have not been able to attend the meetings 
which are mainly Ad Hoc. Hopefully in the coming year the 
meetings will become more frequent. Saying this I do believe 
the Solway AONB is run by good managers & are very 
conscientious of the area. 
 

Solway Firth 
Partnership 

I was appointed to in 2019. I’ve tried to attend every virtual 
meeting since lockdown which is about 4 times a year. It is 
very important to have an ABC representative on this 
committee. Although their projects have been quite limited 
through lockdown I believe that ABC tourism should Build on 
their connections with SFP to encourage visitors all around 
the Solway Firth 
 

Spent Fuel 
Management & 
Nuclear Materials 
Group 

1 Irregular intervals.  Pandemic has caused some disruption 
to the meetings schedule over the past year.  
2 Attended the most recent but not sure how many meetings 
there have been in total. 
3 Yes, I think that Sellafield Ltd and the nuclear industry play 
a crucial role in the culture and economy of West Cumbria 
and that it is very important that the Council is represented on 
committees where nuclear issues are discussed at both a 
national and local level. 
4 Regular updates on the Nuclear Decommissioning 
Programme, responses to the NDA Strategy 4 and Business 
Plan. It is useful to be able to discuss responses with other 
stakeholders present at these meetings. 
5 The discussion around the consultations and regular 
updates are of benefit to the Council as well as to 
representatives of other organisations within the group. 
6 Yes.  As stated above, the nuclear industry is of huge 
significance to Allerdale Borough Council.  West Cumbria will 
be directly affected by any changes within that industry.  It is 
therefore essential to be part of the discussion process. 
7 No, thank you. 
 

West Cumbria Site 
Stakeholder Group 

The West Cumbria Stakeholder group has met on several 
occasions over the past 18 months both in person but mainly 
through virtual media meetings. I attended the NDA 2day 
conference in Anglesey but due to work commitments over 

Page 40



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 June 2021 

Outside Body and Joint Committee Appointments 

 

the past year at Sellafield I have been unable to attend the 
quarterly meetings. 
However, I receive the meeting reports and review these for 
any standout issues, noting in my current work position I have 
a significant input and understanding of the Sellafield 
decommissioning programme.   
In general, the main stay of the meetings has been 
associated with the running of the Sellafield site which has 
been on minimum manning levels since the start of the Covid 
19 pandemic back in March 2020. As a result of this, most 
projects on the site have been at a standstill for the past 13 
months.  
However, the major issue arising over the past 18 months has 
been the announcement by the Nuclear Decommissioning 
Authority of their proposed engagement strategy and their 
intention to build a Geological Waste Facility (GDF) to 
accommodate the UK’s Intermediate and High-level 
radioactive waste. This is being driven by the subsidiary 
group of the NDA the Radioactive Waste Management 
(RWM) Group. Several presentations by the RWM have been 
held for councillors throughout the year. 
Given that West Cumbia will inevitably play a significant role 
in the siting of any proposed GDF location, I believe the 
intended implementation and delivery strategy for a new GDF 
does raise key questions and also possible significant 
impacts on the council, which need considered moving 
forward. 
The Council needs to stay connected as much as possible 
with the nuclear industry 
I have not received any invites as yet. 
 

Workington 
Harbour 
Management 
Committee 

This Committee meets quarterly. I have attended all of the 
meetings in the last 2 year. 
The role of Workington Harbour Management Committee is to 
Ensure the County Council discharges all its statutory duties 
and functions as a Statutory Harbour Authority, receive 
quarterly budget monitoring reports to ensure active 
monitoring and decision making in relation to the financial 
position and the Harbour reserve.  Ensure the Harbour 
remains self-financing and address any other issues in 
relation to the Harbour. Representing Allerdale Borough 
Council enables me to do this and I believe adds value. 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Allerdale Borough Council – Executive Reports and Key Decisions 
 
1 June 2021 to 31 May 2022 
 

Decision Date decision to be 
made and decision 
maker 

Open/Exempt Portfolio Holder Officer contact details 

Allerdale Economic 
Strategy and 
Workington 
Investment Plan 
 
Key Decision 
 
To consider the 
refreshed Economic 
Strategy for the Borough 
and the Investment Plan 
as part of Workington 
Stronger Towns. 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
12 May 2021 

Open 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Nik Hardy, Assistant 
Chief Executive (Policy, 
Performance and 
Economic Strategy), 
Kevin Kerrigan, 
Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
nik.hardy@allerdale.gov
.uk, 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Council Strategy 
Delivery Plan 2021-22 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
12 May 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Assistant Chief 
Executive (Policy, 
Performance and 
Economic Strategy) 
 
 

Workington Towns 
Fund 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Leader and Executive 

Open 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 

Kevin Kerrigan, 
Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 8



Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking 
 
14 May 2021 

Mike Johnson) e.gov.uk 

Appointments to 
Committees 2021-22 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
19 May 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Appointments to 
Outside Bodies 2021-
22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To appoint Council 
representatives to 
Outside Bodies and 
Joint Committees that 
are a function of the 
Council. 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
19 May 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Calendar of Meetings 
2021-22 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
19 May 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

P
age 44



Governance Updates 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
19 May 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Application to 
Levelling Up Fund 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking 
 
4 June 2021 

Part exempt 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Kevin Kerrigan, 
Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Quarter 4 Performance 
Report 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy Interim 
Delivery plan 2020/21 at 
the end of Quarter 4 
2020/21. 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
23 June 2021 

Open 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Appointments to 
Outside Bodies 2021-
22 

 
 
 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 

P
age 45



 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To appoint Council 
representatives to 
Outside Bodies that are 
a function of the 
Executive. 

 
Executive 
 
23 June 2021 

People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Allerdale Investment 
Partnership - 
Consideration of 
Future Sites 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Chief Executive, Chief 
Officer (Assets) and 
S151 Officer 
 
June 2021 

Fully exempt 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Brendan Carlin, 
Assistant Chief 
Executive (Innovation 
and Commercial) 
 
brendan.carlin@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Pay Policy Statement 
2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
28 July 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Kathryn Higgins, HR 
Advisor 
 
kathryn.higgins@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Report from 
Constitution Working 
Group - Review of 
Council Governance 
Arrangements and 
Structure 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
28 July 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

P
age 46



 
Meetings of the Council, Executive and Scrutiny Committees are open to the public (except when exempt (confidential) items are 
being considered).  It is advisable to check the agenda before attending a meeting, as decision dates may be subject to change.   
Agendas and supporting documents for meetings of the Executive can be found on the Council’s website www.allerdale.gov.uk or 
at Allerdale House, Workington, Cumbria, CA14 3YJ 
 
Further information is available by calling 01900 702502 
 
Any representations as to why a meeting should be open to the public should be made in writing to Democratic Services at the 
above address. 
 
A list of the Executive members can be found at http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11

P
age 47

http://www.allerdale.gov.uk/
http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11


T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 48



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 18 June 2021 

 

Selection of items for the OSC work programme 

 

Report from    Ian Hinde, Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships) 

Wards affected   All 

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0 The reason for the decision 

 
1.1 At this meeting the Committee is considering its work programme for the municipal 

year. This report provides background information to assist with the process of 
selection. 

 

2.0  Recommendations 

 
2.1 That the Committee determines its work programme against the criteria herein. 
 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 Overview and Scrutiny must add value to the work of the Council and produce 

worthwhile outcomes for local people.  

3.2 The guiding principle of Overview and Scrutiny is that it should involve constructive 
challenge with the aim of improving decision making and make a positive 
contribution to policy development and improving performance.  

3.3 It is the responsibility of each Overview and Scrutiny Committee to select suitable 
topics to be scrutinised and to set an annual work programme at the beginning of 
each municipal year. It also states that the work programme will be made up of 
priority issues and allow for the inclusion of ad hoc and urgent items during the 
year.   

 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



4.0  Content  

 
4.1 When selecting topics, the Committee should have in mind a Council and borough 

rather than a ward level focus (although it can be useful if experiences at ward level 
are fed in when appropriate).  

4.2 Capacity is also an important consideration. The nature of Overview and Scrutiny 
can lead to the number of topics exceeding the Council’s capacity to deal with them 
in a thorough and effective way. The Committee should therefore consider the need 
to focus on priority issues which matter most and deliver outcomes that will make a 
difference.   

4.3 Work programme topics may be regular ‘standing items’ (e.g. scrutiny of Executive 
business and performance monitoring and budget scrutiny) or specific one off 
pieces of work  

4.4 A structured approach to topic selection is crucial. Discipline is essential – individual 
issues, inappropriate issues and non-priorities need to be filtered out in a fair, 
consistent and open and transparent way. A selection process will help identify 
these and support this.  

 Positive reasons to select a topic  

 Improvements to local people and communities are likely  

 It is a corporate priority for the Council 

 There is evidence that it is a key issue for customers and communities with 
high levels of dissatisfaction  

 Evidence identifies an area of poor performance  

 Barriers exist which create inequality in service provision  

 Reasons to reject a topic  

 It is already being addressed and would lead to duplication  

 It is not within the remit of the Council (for example parts of Health 
Scrutiny/other partnership scrutiny where scrutiny mechanisms are in place 
and the Council can feed into these) 

 It is part of a legal process 

 It falls within the Council’s complaints procedure 

 It is subject to a disciplinary/grievance procedure 

 It is unlikely to result in real or tangible improvements for local people and 
communities  

Page 50



 Questions to ask before selecting a topic  

 Why would we do this? 

 How does it link to the Council Strategy?  

 What would the Committee wish to achieve and why?  

 What benefits could result for local people and communities?  

 What evidence is there to support the need for a review? 

 Competing topics  

 If too many topics are suggested for the time available, consider: 

 The importance in terms of the Council’s aims and priorities 

 The potential benefit of the widest possible section(s) of the community 

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 Once topics are selected, for meetings the Committee can - 

a) Identify ‘standing items’ at the outset (annual budget/performance against the 
Council Strategy – quarterly reports) 

b) At each meeting the Committee can review the Forward Plan for forthcoming 
items requiring input or scrutiny 

c) Consider issues for potential in-depth review/inquiry (e.g., significant community 
concerns, major problem areas, poorly performing services, inequality in service 
provision, consistent areas of over/under spending).  

d) Consider issues for potential policy review or development (is something not 
working, are there gaps in policy, is input needed on major policy developments) 

e) Consider suggesting topics for external scrutiny where there are statutory duties 
or significant community concerns  

f) Regularly invite suggestions from members of the Council, the Executive, 
officers, partners and community organisations and groups.  

 

 

6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee role is central to contributing improvements 
assisting the delivery of the Council Strategy. 

Page 51



6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

 None directly from this report. 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

 None directly from this report. 

6.4 Risk analysis 

 Not applicable. 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee recognises the important contribution it 
makes to the Council’s overall satisfaction. 

6.6 Equality impacts 

 None directly from this report. 

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

 None directly from this report. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

 None directly from this report. 

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

 None directly from this report. 

6.10 Other significant implications 

 None from this report. 
 
Appendices attached to this report 
 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

1. List of topics to be considered for the programme 

 
 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Contact officer name – Ian Hinde 
Job title – Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships) 
Email address – ian.hinde@allerdale.gov.uk 
Tel no. – 01900 516664 

Page 52



 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2021-2022 
   

Last updated: 09/06/2021 

Meeting dates 2021-22 

2021  Friday 16 July    2022  Friday 4 February  

Friday 3 September     Friday 18 March 

Friday 8 October      Friday 15 April 

Friday 19 November 

Friday 17 December 
 

 

Topics to be considered for the programme  

- Monitoring of town centre programmes 
o To ensure these programmes are delivering what the initial proposals promised 

o To consider the role of consultants in developing proposals for the other towns in the 

borough 

 

- Community leadership 
o To consider the role of councillors as community leaders 

o To consider the role of community engagement 

o To review the role of officers as area/community champions and engagement with 

councillors 

o To consider the role and work of the multi-agency Hub 

o To consider the Council’s role as charity trustee 

o To consider the role of councillors as representatives in community organisations 

o To consider the Council’s role in corporate parenting 

o To explore income from and expenditure in communities across the borough 

 

- Review of leisure services 
o To consider the review of leisure services provision 

o To monitor engagement in and the effectiveness of the sports village proposals 

 

- Review of policies and strategies 
o To consider proposals for reviewing the Council’s policies and strategies 

o Examine the use of the Social Value Act to assess the Council’s decision-making 

processes 

o Examine Council policies for applications to its committees being notified to 

councillors and being publicised more widely 

o Consider the benefits of the Council’s Asset Transfer Policy for all parties involved 

o Monitor the progress of the housing needs audit and subsequent policy refresh 

Page 53



 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2021-2022 
   

Last updated: 09/06/2021 

- Future local government proposals 
o Consider the outcomes of the local government reorganisation review 

o Consider further aspects of the Council’s response to the pandemic 

- Regular and annual items 
o To consider the quarterly performance and financial reports 
o To monitor and scrutinise the Council’s annual budget building process 

o To consider updates from representatives to other scrutiny bodies 
 

 

Page 54


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Quarter 4 Performance Report 2020/21
	AppendixA_Q4 Performance report 2020-21_final

	7 Report from Outside Body Representatives
	8 Forward Plan
	9 Work Programme 2021/22
	Appendix 1 List of topics


